i"’ Earth Negotiations Bulleti

A Reporting Service for Environment and Devel opment Negotiations

Vol. 15 No. 18

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Monday, 1 February 1999

THE SECOND SESSION OF THE
INTERNATIONAL NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE
FOR AN INTERNATIONAL LEGALLY BINDING

INSTRUMENT FOR IMPLEMENTING
INTERNATIONAL ACTION ON CERTAIN
PERSISTENT ORGANIC POLLUTANTS (POPS):
25 -29 JANUARY 1999

The second session of the International Negotiating Committee
(INC-2) for an International Legally Binding Instrument for Imple-
menting International Action on Certain Persistent Organic Pollutants
(POPs) was held from 25-29 January 1999 in Nairobi, Kenya. Dele-
gatesfrom over 100 countries, aswell asrepresentativesfrom UN
agencies, environmental non-governmental organizations (NGOSs),
intergovernmental organizations (IGOs) and industry, convened to
further consider possible elements of an international legally binding
instrument on aninitial list of twelve POPs grouped into three catego-
ries: 1) pesticides: aldrin, chlordane, DDT, dieldrin, endrin,
heptachlor, mirex and toxaphene; 2) industrial chemicals: hexachlo-
robenzene and polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs); and 3) unintended
byproducts: dioxinsand furans.

After general discussionsin Plenary on a Secretariat-prepared
expanded outline of aninternational legally binding instrument, dele-
gatesdivided into Negotiation and Implementation Groupsthat metin
parallel sessions. The Negotiation Group examined thetext of the
expanded outline and the Implementation Group discussed possible
needsfor technical and financial assistance.

A BRIEF HISTORY OF THE POPSNEGOTIATIONS

During the 1960s and 1970s, the use of certain chemicalsin
industry and as pesticidesincreased dramatically. Many of these
chemicalsareimportant to modern society but they can also posea
seriousthreat to human health and the environment. In particular, a
certain category of chemicalsknown as persistent organic pollutants
(POPs) hasrecently attracted international attention dueto agrowing
body of scientific evidenceindicating that exposureto very low dose:
of certain POPs can lead to cancer, damage to the central and periph-
eral nervous systems, diseases of theimmune system, reproductive
disorders, and interference with normal infant and child devel opment
POPs are chemical substancesthat persist, bioaccumulate and pose a
risk of causing adverse effectsto human health and the environment.
With the further evidence of the long-range transport of these
substancesto regions where they have never been used or produced
and the consequent threats they now pose to the environment world-
wide, theinternational community has called for urgent global action
to reduce and eliminate their rel ease into the environment.

Prior to 1992, international action on chemicals primarily involve
developing toolsfor risk assessment and conducting international
assessments of priority chemicals. For example, in 1989 UNEP
amended its London Guidelinesfor the Exchange of Information on
Chemicalsin Internationa Trade and the FAO established the Interne
tional Code of Conduct for the Distribution and Use of Pesticides. In
1992, the UN Conference on Environment and Development

(UNCED) adopted Agenda 21. Chapter 19 of Agenda 21, “Environ
mentally Sound Management of Toxic Chemicals Including Prever

Overall, many delegates characterized INC-2 as a success. Given

the early stages of the negotiation process, this success can perhaps be

attributed to preexisting global consensus on the hazards of POPs and INTHISISSUE

the solid foundation from which negotiations began. In the Negotia- A Brief History of the POPs Negotiations . ............ 1

tion Group, delegates compl eted preliminary discussions on measures

to reduce or eliminate releases of POPsinto the environment, identi- Reportof INC-2 .. ... 2

fied by many asthe pivotal article of the future POPs convention. PIENATY. . .\ttt .3

Reflecting itsimportance to the convention, significant time and Negotiation Group. . . .. ...ooveeeeeene... 4

energy was dedicated to "healthy discussions” on theissue. The Implementation Group. . .. ........uoeeeinn... . 6

general discussions held in the Implementation Group resulted in an Closing Plenary 8

initial consensus on possible capacity building activitiesrequiring [~ Y TS o n sy

technical and financial assistancethat will provide the basisfor devel- . :

oping articleson these ssues. ABrief Analysisof INC-2 . .. ......... .. ... .. ... .... 9
ThingstoLookFor. . ................ ... 10

Thisissueof the Earth NegotiationsBulletin © <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Richard Campbell, LL.B. <richcam@hotmail.com>, Laura Ivers <laurai@iisd.org>, Lel
Mead <leila@interport.net>, Anny Wong, Ph.D. <wonga@ewc.hawaii.edu>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.ofdaragirthd=ditor is Langston James
"Kimo" Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. Digital editing by Andrei Henry <ahenry@iisd.ca). Logistics by Molly Rosenman <mrosenma@a@iikde Sustaining Donors of the
Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the United States (through WiSKA¢IHwiss Agency for Environment,
Forests and Landscape. General Support fdBtHetin during 1999 is provided by the United Kingdom Department for International Development (DFID), the German|Fedel
Ministry of Environment (BMU) and the German Federal Ministry of Development Cooperation (BMZ), the Danish Ministry of Affegigrthe European Community (DG-
XI), the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministries of Foreign Affairs and Environment of ynistry of Foreign Affairs and Ministry of
Environment of Finland, the Government of Sweden, the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP), the Global Enviroritpé@BEFcénd the Ministry for the
Environment in Iceland. ThBulletin can be contacted by e-mail at <enb@iisd.org> and at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. IISD can be contactédth
<info@iisd.ca> and at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th Floor, Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada. The opinions expreEaetth iNegjeti ations Bulletin are those of the
authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of 11ISD and other funders. Excerpts fEanttiNegotiations Bulletin may be used in non-commercial publications only
only with appropriate academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Miitagtigdironic versions of tHaulletin are sent
to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellitasrteigavabove Nairobi (c) 1999 The Living Earth,
Inc. http://livingearth.com. For information on tRarth Negotiations Bulletin, send e-mail to <enb@iisd.org>.

e-m

<<

and




Earth NegotiationsBulletin
Monday, 1 February1999 TS .. Vol. 15 No. 18 Page 2

tion of lllegal International Traffic in Toxic and Dangerous Products,” The first session of the Criteria Expert Group (CEG-1) was held
called for the creation of an Intergovernmental Forum on Chemicalfrom 26-30 October 1998 in Bangkok, Thailand. Over 100 delegates
Safety (IFCS). Agenda 21 also called for the establishment of the from approximately 50 countries gathered to consider the programm
Inter-Organization Programme on the Sound Management of Chemi-work of the CEG, including the development of science-based
cals (IOMC) to promote coordination among international organizaeriteria for identifying additional POPs as candidates for future inter-

tions involved in implementing Chapter 19. national action. Concurrently, delegates considered the developmen
In March 1995, the UNEP Governing Council (GC) adopted Deéif a procedure for identifying additional POPs, including the informa-
sion 18/32 inviting the IOMC, the IFCS and the International tion required at different stages of the procedure and who would non

Programme on Chemical Safety (IPCS) to initiate an assessment nate, screen and evaluate a substance as a potential future POPs
process regarding an initial list of 12 POPs. In response to this invigandidate.

tion, the IFCS convened &d Hoc Working Group on POPs that

developed a workplan for assessing these substances. The assessments REPORT OF INC-2

of the chemicals included available information on the chemistry, On Monday, 25 January, Chair John Buccini (Canada) opened
sources, toxicity, environmental dispersion and socioeconomic  |NC-2 and introduced Shafgat Kakakhel, Deputy Director of UNEP, t
impacts of the 12 POPs. In June 1996 Atiéloc Working Group deliver opening remarks. Kakakhel welcomed delegates to INC-2 on
convened a meeting of experts in Manila, the Philippines, which  pehalf of UNEP Executive Director Dr. Klaus Tépfer. He underscorec
concluded that sufficient information existed to demonstrate the negt the negotiation of a POPs treaty is a priority for UNEP. He noted
for international action to minimize the risks from the 12 specified that the work of the INC is well underway and lauded the consensus
POPs, including a global legally binding instrument. The meeting achieved at INC-1 as a step forward for global action to reduce and
forwarded a recommendation to the UNEP GC and the World Healt#liminate all environmental discharges of POPs. He emphasized tha
Assembly (WHA) that immediate international action be taken.  no country or person is protected from the effects of POPs and that r
In February 1997, the UNEP GC adopted Decision 19/13C country alone can stem the tide. He emphasized the importance of w
endorsing the conclusions and recommendations of the IFCS. Thed&@resources in meeting the challenge of negotiating a treaty by the
requested that UNEP, together with relevant international organizayear 2000 and highlighted the POPs Club as a mechanism for countr
tions, prepare for and convene an intergovernmental negotiating and NGOs to contribute resources to support negotiations. In closing
committee (INC) with a mandate to prepare, by the year 2000, an ihigexpressed his belief that INC-2 will act deliberately and decisively
national legally binding instrument for implementing international to further the elaboration of a POPs convention.
action, beginning with the 12 specified POPs. The first meeting of the Chair Buccini then introduced, and the Plenary adopted, the
INC was also requested to establish an expert group for the develoggenda for INC-2 (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/1). Jim Willis, Director of
ment of science-based criteria and a procedure for identifying addiy NEP Chemicals, presented the Secretariat's report on intersession
tional POPs as candidates for future international action. Also in  work, as requested by INC-1. He informed the Plenary that a POPs
February 1997, the second meeting of the IFCS decided that the IRG&racterization database is now available and new GEF funds are
Ad Hoc Working Group would continue to assist in preparations for theancing POPs identification and management initiatives. Dr. Ulrich
negotiations. In May 1997, the WHA endorsed the recommendatiogghlottman (Germany) highlighted the discussions and outcomes of
of the IFCS and requested that the World Health Organization (WH®Q8 |SG-3 held in Yokohama, Japan, in December 1998. Andrea Merl
participate actively in negotiations of the international instrument. on behalf of the GEF, emphasized the GEF's support for the POPs
INC-1: The first session of the Intergovernmental Negotiating negotiations. He said the GEF is ready to serve as the financial mecl
Committee (INC-1) was held from 29 June-3 July 1998 in Montrealnism for this convention, but underscored the need for additional
Canada. Delegates from approximately 90 countries met with a cle@sources.
spirit of cooperation, mutual purpose and shared responsibility, and CEG Co-Chairs Reiner Arndt (Germany) and Fatoumata Jallow
voiced their determination to tackle what is universally acknowledgqéloye (The Gambia) reported on the outcomes of CEG-1. Co-Chair
as a very real and serious threat to human health and the environmgidt highlighted the CEG's suggestion for the INC to consult the
INC-1 elected bureau members, and considered the programme ofnternational Maritime Organization (IMO) before addressing whethe
work for the INC, as well as the possible elements for inclusion in aghe POPs instrument should include anthropogenic transport of tribut
international legally binding instrument on the list of 12 POPs. INC+ih (TBT). Co-Chair Jallow Ndoye highlighted the table of tasks for a
also established a Criteria Expert Group (CEG), as well as a workiRgocedure and the proposed work plan for the CEG.

group on implementation aspects of a future instrument, such as issugg AN asked the CEG to evaluate socioeconomic factors in balan

related to technical and financial assistance. Delegates also met ingWo scientific factors. NORWAY stressed inclusion of the precau-
contact groups to discuss terms of reference for the CEG and techy ry principle in developing criteria and procedure. SOUTH

information needs. Based on discussions at INC-1 and governmen ICA asked for closer studv of contamination due to river trans-
NGO submissions received by September 1998, INC-1 asked the ot and queried whether thisyconstitutes a global problem. The
Secretariat to prepare a document for INC-2 containing material fo o\mINICAN REPUBLIC expressed concern regarding proof of risk
possible inclusion in an international legally binding instrument. 5 hazard. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL underscored the diffi-
CEG-1: Established at INC-1, the CEG is an open-ended techniggty in proving the harm of a substance. KUWAIT said a POPs
working group with a mandate to present to the INC proposals for convention needs solutions, including alternatives to DDT. Co-Chair
science-based criteria and a procedure for identifying additional PQRfow Ndoye highlighted the CEG's discussion on contamination du
as candidates for future international action. The CEG is to incorpotatgver transport and reiterated that the CEG had established a Cont
criteria pertaining to persistence, bioaccumulation, toxicity and expgroup to examine socioeconomic factors. Co-Chair Arndt said solvin
sure in different regions and should take into account the potential ffe DDT dilemma was not the CEG's responsibility. Chair Buccini
regional and global transport, including dispersion mechanisms forgéshonded that the INC would deal with DDT.
atmosphere and the hydrosphere, migratory species and the need t0 pg|egates agreed to retain the Bureau elected at INC-1. INDIA, 0
reflect possible influences of marine transport and tropical climateg,enaif of the Asia Pacific Group, announced that Jafar Ghamieh (Ira
The work of the CEG is to be completed and submitted to the INC g}8[,|d replace Vice-Chair Mohammed Asrarul Haque (India). Maria-
before its fourth session. Cristina Cardenas Fischer (Colombia) and Ephraim Buti Mathebula
(South Africa) were retained as Vice-Chairs. Darka Hamel (Croatia)
remained the Rapporteur.



Earth NegotiationsBulletin
Vol.15No.18Page3 S Monday, 1 February 1999

PLENARY CONSUMERS INTERNATIONAL called for consideration of

On Monday and Tuesday, 25-26 January, delegatesmetin Plenary  chemical or biological transformation of certain substances into POP
and heldinitial discussions on the preparation of an international GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL underscored that elimination is
legally binding instrument. In opening discussions, Chair Buccini the ultimate goal and that language must reflect this, and called for

asked delegates to confirm that the document, “Expanded outline afr@ater global effort in eradicating stockpiles. The INTERNATIONAL
international legally binding instrument for implementing interna- COUNCIL OF CHEMICAL ASSOCIATIONS (ICCA) stressed its
tional action on certain POPs” (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/2), would provigepport for the negotiations.
an adequate basis for discussions. The Secretariat explained that the Delegates gave general support to the draft text on national imple
document drew on the Convention on Long-range Transboundary dientation plans. IRAN, CHINA, INDIA, the US and others called for
Pollution (LRTAP), the Framework Convention on Climate Changea flexible approach to accommodate different national, subregional
(FCCC), the Convention on Biological Diversity (CBD), the Montreahd regional circumstances. The EU, supported by PANAMA, said
Protocol and the PIC Convention. The majority of delegates suppopihs should be obligatory. CHINA, COSTA RICA and others called
the document and noted areas of importance to be addressed. Chédr technical and financial assistance for developing countries and
Buccini emphasized the need to discuss all of the articles over the countries with economies in transition in formulating plans and
course of INC-2 in order to transform the expanded outline into a dtafilding institutions and capacity. The US said that the GEF has pilot
text. He then opened the floor for general discussions on the exparadgidn plans to assist developing countries. PANAMA, supported by
outline to provide guidance for the discussions of the Implementatitite PHILIPPINES and ZAMBIA, stressed the value of subregional
Group. and regional harmonization and coordination. The US said the startir
GERMANY, on behalf of the EU, with support from the GAMBIApoints for addressing byproducts would vary according to different
and NORWAY, called for a provision to ban trade in prohibited chemliemestic conditions. The Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)
cals, allowing transboundary movements only for environmentally encouraged assistance to help produce, develop or purchase POPs
sound destruction. The US and NEW ZEALAND cautioned againsi@lternatives at reasonable prices.
giving excessive attention to trade matters. ETHIOPIA, ANGOLA and Regarding information exchange, IRAN and GREENPEACE
SENEGAL called for inclusion of provisions proposed at INC-1 on,INTERNATIONAL advocated a wider scope of information
inter alia: inventory requirements; liability and compensation; and exchange. BARBADOS and LESOTHO requested information on
remediation and clean up of contaminated sites. EGYPT called forimport and export of POPs. GHANA and EL SALVADOR supported
regional training centers to raise awareness. information exchange throughout the whole chemical cycle. SURI-
CHINA noted that issues surrounding the production, export andAME proposed information exchange on national implementation
accumulative impacts of POPs are different for developed and devplans. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL emphasized solutions and
oping countries and, with IRAN, said the instrument should stipulat&@formation on alternatives regarding byproducts. ALGERIA asked
shared but differentiated responsibilities. The US indicated preferewb® would decide what constitutes a good alternative and suggeste
for the concept of shared responsibilities under the PIC Conventiolesignating organizations to determine scientific validity and to facili
Regarding implementation, IRAN stressed linkage of commit- tate decision making. ETHIOPIA and BANGLADESH, on behalf of
ments to financial and technological needs and, with CHINA, empHaz77/CHINA, underscored the value of developing and disseminatin
sized the importance of reliable financial and technological assistaig@rmation on indigenous and non-chemical alternatives. IRAN,
to ensure compliance in developing countries. The RUSSIAN CUBA and PERU called for a clearly defined information exchange
FEDERATION stressed consideration for social and economic factg@chanism. NEW ZEALAND and CUBA cautioned against duplica-
in developing countries and countries with economies in transition tion of information dissemination efforts.
INDIA, BRAZIL and others emphasized the need for differentiated =~ CANADA, supported by the US, proposed separate paragraphs f
timetables for phasing out POPs. BRAZIL underscored the need tanformation exchange on elimination and reduction and on develop-
address unintentionally produced byproducts. COLOMBIA under- ment of alternatives. COLOMBIA, INDONESIA and BANG-
lined the need to define the convention's objectives and purpose. LADESH emphasized information exchange among countries sharir
Delegates next addressed the proposed article on measures tosimilar conditions. The EU encouraged IGO and NGO contributions.
reduce or eliminate releases of POPs into the environment. INDIA andon confidentiality, the EU, PERU, INDONESIA, LESOTHO,
CHINA stressed different phase out schedules for developed and KUWAIT, GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL and others called for
developing countries. The GAMBIA called for prohibition of producunrestricted information exchange and stressed transparency and
tion and use to extend to illegal entry. ARGENTINA requested clarifiondiscriminatory treatment. The US and the RUSSIAN FEDERA-
cation on whether the restrictions on the production and use clausd ION supported confidentiality for business information and national
includes exemptions. On reducing releases, the EU and NORWAY security purposes, respectively. The EU, CUBA and THAILAND
called for definition of “best available technology.” JAPAN stressedsupported establishing national contact/focal points. ARGENTINA
the use of internationally comparable release inventories by all Paréies. CUBA asked the Secretariat to supply outlines or models for infc
The US underscored the need for good baseline data in reduction ofiation exchange mechanisms. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION cited
total annual releases. CANADA supported emissions reduction targfaesMontreal Protocol as a possible model.
that accommodate individual circumstances. On public information, awareness and education, the PHILIP-
On stockpiles, the GAMBIA requested a paragraph to reflect th&INES, MALI, INDIA and others underscored the importance of
parties with capacity should assist those without. ETHIOPIA called &stivities to change public attitudes and behavior at all levels of
obligations on exporting countries to address stockpiles. PAPUA society, including comprehensive advocacy campaigns and national
NEW GUINEA stressed protection of developing countries from POPs awareness networks. The GAMBIA cited sensitizing policy
unwanted products. makers as a priority. IRAN called for interregional cooperation and
JAPAN said exemptions should include public health emergendigdning to reduce adverse impacts of POPs. CANADA and SWIT-
and research purposes. CANADA and GERMANY supported som&ERLAND requested inclusion of integrated pest management (IPM

limited provision for exemptions. The US, CANADA, JAPAN and  The US said the public should have an opportunity for input in devel-
others supported a simpler structure with fewer annexes. oping national plans. INTERNATIONAL POPS ELIMINATION

NETWORK (IPEN) said obstacles to public education include inac-



Monday, 1 February 1999

Voal. 15 No. 18 Page 4

cessibility of information dueto national security and intellectual
property rightsrestrictions (IPR), and called for afull disclosure of
information that might affect human health and the environment.

On research, devel opment and monitoring, NIGERIA stressed the
need for an oversight of technical assistance. CANADA called for
harmoni zation of sampling methodologies. The RUSSIAN FEDERA-
TION, SENEGAL and EGY PT supported using elements of the Mont-
real Protocol, including national focal pointsand an oversight
committee. The PHILIPPINES said national monitoring should
involvethe private sector, particularly concerningillegal traffic of
banned substances. The FAO recommended the CEG’swork on
criteriaidentification for consideration. INUITS OF THE WORLD
called for astronger core obligation on Partiesin these activities.
PHY SICIANS FOR SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (PSR) emphasized
phase out of DDT without compromising the battle against malaria.
Following an EU proposal that POPs should only be exported and
imported for their environmentally sound destruction, the BASEL
CONVENTION requested aclear indication that when POPs become
wastes, they will fall under the Basel Convention to avoid overlap and
contradictions.

NEGOTIATION GROUP

Beginning on Tuesday, 26 January, the Negotiation Group, chaired
by John Buccini (Canada), met for six sessionsto begin discussing text
on articlesfor inclusionin the legally binding instrument on POPs.
Substantial attention was given to: measuresto reduce or eliminate
rel eases of POPsinto the environment; national implementation plans;
information exchange; public information, awareness and education;
and research, development and monitoring. The Group also looked at
theremaining articles and identified which should be sent to the legal
drafting group at INC-3. The Group did not discussarticleson: the
criteriaand procedure for adding chemicalsto the convention, whichis
left to the CEG; technical assistance and financial resources and mecha-
nisms, under discussionin the Implementation Group; or the preambl e,
objective and definitions, which are yet to be devel oped.

A Contact Group was established to examine the annexeson
prohibited and restricted POPs. The Group met for the better part of
Wednesday and Thursday and was chaired by Charles Auer (US).

On Wednesday, 27 January, making ageneral statement on behalf
of the G-77/CHINA, BANGLADESH stressed: the need to establish a
new multilateral funding mechanism; atimeframe set according to
socioeconomic conditions; differentiated responsibilities; equal consid-
eration by the CEG to socioeconomic impactsand scientific eval uation;
and assistance from devel oped countries. He requested the statement be
placed in an annex to the report of the meeting.

The WHO reported on progress of its plan of action with special
referenceto the gradual phasing out of DDT (UNEP/POPS/INC.1/
INF/11) and said technical and financial assistanceisneeded for effec-
tivemalariacontrol and for reducing dependence on DDT.

MEASURESTO REDUCE OR ELIMINATE RELEASES:
The Negotiation Group began itswork with adiscussion on measures
to reduce or eliminate rel eases of POPsinto the environment,
including measures on prohibition and restriction on production and
use of intentionally produced POPs, reducing rel eases of byproducts,
and the management and disposal of stockpiles.

Prohibition and Restriction on Production and Use: On
Tuesday, 26 January, del egates began discussing the prohibition of
production and use of POPs and debated whether the prohibition
should also includeimport and export. On prohibition of production
and use, the PHILIPPINES, NORWAY, BANGLADESH and
GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL said prohibition of export and
import should also be covered. THAILAND, JAPAN andthe US
opposed thisinclusion. CANADA said adiscussion on trade measures
was premature. COLOMBI A supported export and import only for
total destruction. The EU and NORWAY specified that the destruction
be environmentally sound. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL,

MALAW!I and the GAMBIA expressed concern over illegal entry and,

with KUWAIT, over transit movements. |ICCA suggested that the PIC
Convention could cover transboundary movements. JAPAN proposed

that products and wastes be treated separately and, supported by
ICELAND, suggested dealing with waste i ssues under the Basel
Convention. CANADA, JAPAN, AUSTRALIA and the US proposed

afull discussion of the PIC and Basel Conventions before further
discussing import and export controls. The US proposed that each

party take effective measures to “eliminate” rather than “prohibit”
production and use. He said the change would add flexibility, facilitat
necessary domestic legislation to take action, and ensure productior
has been eliminated. On this proposal, GREENPEACE INTERNA-
TIONAL expressed concern about enforcement.

Delegates also debated the two annexes associated with prohibite
and restricted production and use. The US proposed a combined ann
covering both types. WORLD WILDLIFE FUND (WWF), noting the
annex on restricted POPs includes an expiration date, suggested inc
sion of a default mechanism whereby after the restricted expiration
date is reached, the POP would fall into the prohibition annex.
CHINA, supported by IRAN, supported differentiated responsibilities
and provision for this in the annexes.

After initial discussions on prohibited and restricted use in the
Negotiation Group, Chair Buccini suggested that a Contact Group
place the ten intentionally produced POPs in the two annexes and
asked the group to explore adding the ten POPs to the current anne»
format and examine the model put forward by China. The Contact
Group was not asked to address the POPs byproducts, dioxins and
furans.

On Wednesday, 26 January, Contact Group Chair Charles Auer
(US) reported on the Group's progress, noting that four POPs, aldrin,
endrin, toxaphene and hexacholorobenzene, were identified as candi
dates for prohibition in production and use, while differentiated reserve
tions on prohibition and restriction were given to chlordane, dieldrin,
DDT, heptachlor, mirex and PCBs. Chair Auer stressed that the group
work should not be taken as an initial proposal nor be treated as part
the negotiations. Chair Buccini asked the Contact Group to continue
working to fine tune language on exemptions and to refine the annex
structure.

On Thursday, 27 January, Chair Auer reported on the Contact
Group’s final results, noting it had addressed general and specific
exemptions, organization and structure of annexes and approaches
differentiated responsibilities. Noting that the definition of concepts
was only to facilitate the Contact Group's discussions, Auer said the
terms “general” and “specific” exemptions were used: general being
an exclusion addressed in the measures article, which has general
applicability to all POPs unless otherwise specified; and specific bein
an exclusion addressed in a control annex or annexes, which is appl
cable to a specific chemical in a specific country, for a specific use. 1
identified the following exemptions for inclusion either in the conven-
tion or its annexes: scientific research; intermediates in the manufac
ture of another chemical; unintentional trace contaminants; substanc
in articles manufactured or in use as of the date of entry into force; al
public health emergencies. He also presented the following structure
proposals for the annexes: a single-annex approach for elimination a
restriction; a two-annex approach separating elimination and restric-
tion; and two options for differentiated treatment using the single-
annex approaches as an example.

On Friday, 29 January, taking into account the results of the
Contact Group, delegates completed their preliminary discussions o
prohibited and restricted POPs. Delegates decided to leave trade
measures to control POPs movement and finalization of the annex fc
future consideration. On proposed sections dealing with prohibited
and restricted POPs, delegates debated over whether such chemica
into a single or two separate ones. CANADA, ICELAND and others
suggested, and the Group agreed, the Secretariat fill out both annex
structures with country and UNEP data so that INC-3 could evaluate



Voal. 15 No. 18 Page 5

Monday, 1 February 1999

the benefits of using one annex over the other. Contact Group Chair
Auer suggested that the Contact Group could consider continuing its
work on annexesintersessionally, possibly during the CEG or immedi-
ately prior to INC-3, although resource implicationswould haveto be
considered.

Reducing Byproduct Releases: On Wednesday, 27 January, dele-
gates began discussing the measure on reducing rel eases of POPs
byproducts. Debate revolved around whether the aim should be elimi-
nation. Discussion also addressed clearer intent of the provisionto deal
with byproducts, best availabl e technol ogies, and the associated annex
listing chemicals subject to rel ease reporting and reduction or elimina-
tion measures. The Secretariat’s proposed annex includes sectionson
inventory reporting, technical requirements and annual release targets.
The RUSSIAN FEDERATION highlighted the difficultiesin reducing
annudl total releases of byproducts. CANADA, the US, NORWAY and
others asked that requirements on best available technol ogiesto reduce
releases be changed into guidelines due to difficultiesin meeting
reporting and technical requirements. The EU asked that guidelinesbe
developed. The GAMBIA proposed maintaining both source and
releaseinventories.

Some queried the current division of the annex into three separate
parts. Buccini noted that this structure allowsfor differentiated treat-
ment under each category. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION said the
section on technical requirementswas ambiguous, interlinked with the
section on inventory reporting, and should be deleted. The US ques-
tioned the appropriateness of itsinclusion in an annex. COLOMBIA
proposed practical, instead of best available, technologiesto reduce
releases dueto cost, transfer and IPR restrictions. IRAN, TANZANIA,
GHANA and PAKISTAN emphasized financial and technical assis-
tance for devel oping countries. IRAN and CHINA emphasized access
to aternative technologies. The RUSSIAN FEDERATION and others
asked that the article state clearly the policy objective of reducing
chemical releases. Buccini said text would be reformulated to clearly
indicatethat the INC is proposing reduction release targetsto be set in
accordance with the annex.

On Friday, 29 January, the Group revisited measures on reducing
byproducts. Delegates did not reach consensus on whether elimination
should be the ultimate goal. JAPAN, supported by AUSTRALIA and
the US, said elimination of and timetables on POPs byproducts were
unrealistic and opposed referenceto them. The US, noting its
byproduct problem, said significant and meaningful reduction would
be appropriate. CANADA hoped it would be possible to take strong
measures, including targetsfor reduction. The REPUBLIC OF
KOREA said having elimination asthe aim could have implications
for the credibility of the convention. IRAN, EL SALVADOR, the
PHILIPPINES, the GAMBIA, GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL,
WWF and others said elimination should be the ultimate goal.
GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL said assistance programmes
must be framed in the context of the goal of elimination. ICCA said it
supports meaningful and significant reduction, and emphasi zed that
objectivesshould betechnically feasibleand foreseeable. AUSTRALIA
added that the provision and the annexes warranted further technical
development and discussion due to the technical complexities of the
issue. The Group did not reach consensus on whether elimination
should betheaim.

Sockpiles: On Wednesday, 27 January, del egates addressed the
proposed provision on stockpiles. There was some debate over the
relevance of the Basel Convention to thisissue. The EU questioned the
appropriateness of Basel's regime for POPs and stressed the need to
look at potential overlap with the Basel, PIC and London Dumping
Conventions. ETHIOPIA noted that Conventions do not always have
the same Parties, and NORWAY stressed concentrating on what the
INC wantsto achieve before determining what theinteraction with
other Conventions should be. SWITZERLAND requested adefinition
of "waste" under the Basel Convention and analysis of potential
impactson WTO agreements. AUSTRALIA, supported by NORWAY,

SWITZERLAND, JAPAN, CANADA and the EU, proposed that the
Secretariat produce adocument looking into the linkages between
regimesin order to determine gapsfor INC-3. The Secretariat agreed.
SWITZERLAND stressed the POPs convention should enabl e export
of obsolete stocksto countriesthat have the ability to destroy them.
The GAMBIA, supported by MALI, proposed text stating that those
with capacity should help those without in the destruction of stock-
piles.

On Friday, 29 January, del egates could not reach consensus on
whether countries should devel op, or should endeavor to develop,
appropriate strategiesfor identifying productsand articles still in use
and wastes containing such chemicals. They did, however, agreethat
further discussion on disposal versus destruction was necessary.
NORWAY said measures should ensure that wastes are destroyed, not
disposed of, and that recycling of banned substances was not accept-
able. SWITZERLAND agreed. NORWAY, the US, AUSTRALIA and
ICELAND said that the disposal of POPs as wastes needed further
policy and technical discussions. The US, supported by CANADA, said
the waste provision should cover commercially produced productsand
not POPs byproducts. COSTA RICA and NORWAY drew attention to
ambiguitiesin definitions of POPs as byproducts, wastes and stockpiles.
In responseto the uncertainty, the GAMBI A substituted wastefor
stockpilesin her earlier proposal that countries with capacity help
those without in the destruction of stockpiles. In responseto the
Gambian proposal, MALAY SIA supported reflection of developing
countries need for afinancial mechanism; ETHIOPIA requested
specific helpin cleaning up contaminated sites; GHANA and CAME-
ROON called for assi stance in managing stockpiles and implementation
of adequate measuresto reducerel eases; and NIGERIA sought assis-
tanceto devel op strategiesfor destruction. AUSTRALIA said such
assistance should be decided later. The US opposed inclusion of
Gambiasproposal. IRAN said Parties should carry out their obligations
inamanner consistent with their capacities and subject to financial and
technical assistance. AUSTRALIA and the US objected, asserting that
this demands further discussion by the Implementation Group. Buccini
noted aneed for refinement of termsat the next INC, and said anew
articlemay be needed for stockpiles sincethis onewould cover wastes.
He added that policy discussionsand more analysison theimplications
of thisarticle were needed, and asked the Secretariat to preparefor INC-
3 apaper on waste and stockpiles.

NATIONAL IMPLEMENTATION PLANS: On Wednesday,
27 January, del egates addressed the article on national implementation
plans. ETHIOPIA proposed text calling for development of anational
strategy, in addition to anational implementation plan. The RUSSIAN
FEDERATION said that strategy isimplied. The EU highlighted the
value of regional implementation plansin facilitating implementation
of national plans. PAKISTAN called for aseparate article on regional
and subregional cooperation. IRAN called for wording to reflect
different national circumstances. AUSTRALIA questioned therela
tionship between national implementation plans and reporting. The
Secretariat explained that the former indicates goals and the latter
demonstrates successin achieving them.

On Thursday, 28 January, del egates reviewed arevised text of this
article, incorporating comments made on Tuesday and Wednesday.
Delegates agreed that text with reference to capabilities and technical
stance in implementation and the proposal for the articul ation of
national strategiesbeleft in brackets. A paragraph requiring coopera-
tion with international organizationsto devel op national strategiesand
implementation planswas also left in brackets.

INFORMATION EXCHANGE: On Wednesday, 27 January,
delegates considered information exchange, discussing, in particular,
theissueof confidentiality. NIGERIA, IRAN, TANZANIA, the
GAMBIA and KUWAIT agreed that no relevant information should be
kept confidential. CANADA, theUS and the RUSSIAN FEDERA-
TION supported exchange to the extent that it remained consi stent
with national laws, regulations and practices. AUSTRALIA,



Monday, 1 February 1999

Vol. 15 No. 18 Page 6

supported by the US, noted that some information on alternatives must
be kept confidential with respect to IPR. The EU acknowledged this,
but stressed that information for the 12 POPs be kept confidential.
Buccini said text based on the information exchange articleinthe PIC
Convention would be produced for further examination. IRAN asked
for clarification on the information exchange mechanism. SWITZER-
LAND and KUWAIT supported amechanism through the Secretariat,
not precluding information exchange between Parties. PAKISTAN
cited the CBD clearinghouse mechanism as apossible model. The
RUSSIAN FEDERATION expressed concern over burdening the
Secretariat and referred to the structure under the Montreal Protocol.

On Thursday, 28 January, the Group considered revised text on
information exchange. The EU proposed that at itsfirst session, the
COP should designate an existing and willing IGO to take the lead in
implementation. The PHILIPPINES, CANADA and the US said this
should be the function of the Secretariat. Thefinal text referstorele-
vant information exchange on the reduction or elimination of the
production, use or release of POPs and cost-effective alternatives.
However, delegatesfailed to reach consensus on the issue of confiden-
tiality. Text on the precise mechanism for exchange also was |l eft for
further discussion.

PUBLIC INFORMATION, AWARENESSAND EDUCA-
TION: On Thursday, 28 January, ETHIOPIA underscored the impor-
tance of awareness campaigns for devel oping countries, particularly
thosein Africa. CANADA requested inclusion of IPM. GREEN-
PEACE INTERNATIONAL called for greater specificity of informa-
tion on POPsand the DOMINICAN REPUBLIC drew attention to the
information needs of different kinds of users. IPEN called for stipula-
tion that no information be kept confidential.

Therevised text hasthefollowingin brackets: the EU proposal that
Partiesensure public accessto information and encourageindustry and
usersto provideinformation; IRAN’scall for Partiesto act at theinter-
regional level and consistent with their capacities; IRAN and
TANZANIA’s call for information on the specification, accessibility
and relative costs of aternative productsand practices, the US addition
articulating opportunitiesfor inputs at the national level regarding
implementation of the convention; the GAMBIA’srequest for apara-
graph calling for sensitization of policy and decision makers on POPs
issues; IRAN’s proposal for language reflecting the evaluation of rela-
tive health and environmental risks of POPs; the call by INDONESIA
and TANZANIA and othersfor language underscoring the long-term
effects of POPsand their alternatives on human health and the environ-
ment; TANZANIA's proposal for aparagraph on modalities of infor-
mation dissemination; and the GAMBIA’s call for strengthening of
subregional and regional institutionsin addition to national ones.

RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND MONITORING: On
Thursday, 28 January, del egates proposed changesto the Secretariat’s
draft on research, devel opment and monitoring. Discussion centered
around whether these activities should be obligatory or whether they
should depend onindividual country capabilities. SWAZILAND,
supported by ARGENTINA, the EU and others, proposed text stating
that Parties should ensure these activities. KUWAIT and PAKISTAN,
opposed by the GAMBI A, agreed that a Party’s obligations under this
article be determined by its ahilities. On best availabl e techniques, the
GAMBIA, supported by INDONESIA, proposed referenceto IPM.
INDONESIA also emphasized the long-term human health and envi-
ronmental impacts of POPs. On possible aternatives, the GAMBIA
and ARGENTINA called for referenceto activities on non-chemical
alternatives, including indigenous knowledge. CANADA proposed
another paragraph on methodol ogiesand techniquesto detect, quantify
and inventory substances. NIGERIA proposed that aformal body
oversee harmonization of activitiesto ensure coordination between
Parties. IRAN said results of research, development and monitoring
activities should be made publicly available. IRAN, supported by
ARGENTINA, proposed text to ensure that in undertaking actions,
Parties address the concerns of developing countries. Bracketsremain

around text on indigenous and non-chemical alternatives, aformal
mechanism to oversee activities, and public accessto results of these
activities, and country obligations.

REPORTING: CANADA proposed that reporting should be
regular and that intervals and format should be decided at thefirst
COP. PAKISTAN said the objectives of the convention could affect
thisarticleand called for their speedy establishment.

NON-COMPLIANCE: The US, supported by the EU, suggested
revisiting the issue of non-compliance after further development of the
convention. The EU and AUSTRALIA called for consideration of
non-compliance mechanismsin other conventions.

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES: Thisproposed article, based on
Article 20 of the PIC Convention, provides optionsfor the settlement
of disputes. The UK noted alack of provisioninthisarticlefor
regional economicintegration organizations. The RUSSIAN FEDER-
ATION stressed that the Secretariat beinformed of any conflictsor
contradictions. The US proposed arbitration and/or submission to the
International Court of Justice.

CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES: Thisproposed article,
based on Article 18 of the PIC Convention, lays out the duties and
functions of the COP. SWITZERLAND, supported by ICELAND,
recommended reconsideration of Party dutiesand functionsasthe
convention devel ops.

SECRETARIAT: Thisproposed article, based on Article 19 of
the PIC Convention, lays out the functions of the Secretariat.
GERMANY opened discussion with acall to bracket thisarticle
because of insufficient information on the duties and functions of the
Secretariat. The US, supported by the UK, AUSTRALIA and others,
responded that such caution isunwarranted considering that thetext is
standard for similar international treaties. GERMANY withdrew its
proposal and agreed with the GAMBIA, CANADA, theUSand others
that this article should be addressed following further devel opment of
the convention.

AMENDMENTSTO THE CONVENTION AND ADOPTION
AND AMENDMENT OF ANNEXES: AUSTRALIA andtheUS
said discussion on this article was premature. The UK pointed out that
text is standard and conventional to other similar international treaties
and suggested, with support from CANADA, to only bracket text on
the percentage of votesrequired for action, and leave this aspect for
future policy discussion. ICELAND underscored flexibility in amend-
ment procedures, with sensitivity to social, economic and environ-
mental conditionsin deciding procedures and termsto enable
expedient actions and responses.

OTHER ARTICLES: Following review of theabove articles,
Chair Buccini proposed, and del egates agreed, to turn the articles over
tothelegal drafting group for scrutiny. In addition, delegates agreed to
forward articles on voting, signature, ratification, entry into force,
reservations, withdrawal, depositary and authentic textsto the legal
drafting group at INC-3. Buccini noted that policy discussionswould
continue on these articles following study by the legal drafting group.

IMPLEMENTATION GROUP

Beginning on Tuesday, 26 January, aworking group met for six
sessionsto consider implementation issuesincluding technical and
financial assistance. Established at INC-1 asasubsidiary body, the
I mplementation Group was chaired by Maria Cristina Cardenas Fisher
(Colombia). Upon convening, the Group elected the following Bureau
members: Shantanu Consul (India), Karel Blaha (Czech Republic),
Soki Kue-Di-Kuenda (Angola) and Manfred Schneider (Austria).
Blaha was designated Rapporteur. Discussions proceeded sequenti
on three topics: capacity building areas that could require technical
assistance; potential costs associated with such assistance; and sou
of technical and financial assistance.

As a basis for discussion, the Group had before it a summary of
capacity building areas proposed at INC-1 (UNEP/POPS/INC.1/7) ar
a detailed summary of key activity areas and capacity building activi-



Voal. 15 No. 18 Page 7

Monday, 1 February 1999

ties (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/INF.3). These areas were: development of a
POPsinventory; devel opment of an action plan; establishment of a
POPsfocal unit; development, implementation and enforcement of
regulatory controls; technology transfer activities; enhancement of
local commerceinfrastructure; and development of an outreach/infor-
mation dissemination programme. Three additional activity areaswere
identified for consideration: risk assessment; socioeconomic factors,
and survey and treatment of popul ations exposed to POPs. The Group
produced areport detailing the outcomes of discussionsfor inclusion
inthefinal report of the meeting. On Friday, the Plenary adopted the
report as contained in UNEP/POPS/INC.2/L.1/Add.2.

AREASFOR TECHNICAL AND FINANCIAL ASSIS-
TANCE: On Tuesday, 26 January, the Implementation Group held
general discussionson areasfor technical and financial assistance.
INDIA suggested that the areas for technical and financial assistance
be considered under the umbrellatopic of capacity building, and
emphasized that any list of activitieswould not befinal. IRAN said a
clear ideaof commitments under the convention and the financia
mechanism isnecessary prior to determining activities. The RUSSIAN
FEDERATION said agradual and flexible approach must be taken.
SOUTH AFRICA drew attention to differing degrees of action previ-
ously taken at the national level in different countries. URUGUAY and
NIGERIA called for prioritization of activities. CANADA expressed
concern over perceived emphasis on continual technical assistance
rather than capacity development. CHINA emphasized devel oping
monitoring capacity to gauge progressin stockpile elimination.

POPSINVENTORY:: On Tuesday, 26 January, the Implementa-
tion Group held general discussions on activities associated with
preparing POPsinventories, including: formulation of an internation-
ally accepted methodol ogy for completing an inventory; training
workshops on proceduresfor compl eting and eval uating an inventory;
andinternal and external review of theinventory. Many delegations
supported devel oping inventories and international guidelines.

ZAMBIA underscored the value of inventoriesinidentifying
capacity building needs and attracting the attention of policy makers.
Noting aneed to pool resources, NIGER recommended subregional
cooperation and BARBADOS called for regional inventories. The
FAO underscored theimportance of involving industry and public
interest groupsin raising awarenessand providing datafor inventories.
| CELAND emphasized that inventories are ongoing and noted that
information gathered for inventories on how chemicals are stored will
facilitate risk assessments. The US called for identification of coun-
triesthat need to devel op inventories and of international or regional
agencies ableto provide assistance. GREENPEACE INTERNA-
TIONAL emphasized that inventories must include non-registered
POPsin order to be meaningful, and that action should be taken imme-
diately oninitial inventories.

| CCA noted that improved identification of transboundary move-
ments of POPswould facilitate inventories. UKRAINE called for clar-
ification asto what will be done with pesticides after inventoriesare
completed, and VANUATU, TANZANIA and NIGER drew attention
to existing stockpiles and stressed their elimination asapriority.

Thereport of the Group notesthat, inter alia:

The Group also requested that the Secretariat gather and synthes
national inventory information.

NATIONAL POPSACTION PLANS: On Tuesday, 26 January,
the Implementation Group addressed action plans. The US offered t
make available regional action plans in North America on DDT, PCB.
and chlordane. The final report reflects that delegates underscored t
importance of action plans and the need for development of plans th
include assessments of the institutional, policy and regulatory infra-
structure. Some delegates stressed identifying and conducting risk
assessments and epidemiological studies for populations in developi
countries exposed to POPs, as well as provision of appropriate medi
attention. Delegates also pointed out that useful information could be
obtained by examining the scope, content and development of plans
created under existing multilateral conventions such as the Montreal
Protocol, as well as assistance provided under that process.

POPSFOCAL UNIT: The Implementation Group then addressed
the establishment of POPs focal units. NIGER, SENEGAL,
NIGERIA, BURKINA FASO and PAPUA NEW GUINEA stressed
the use of a national trans-sectoral organization acting as a focal uni
The final report notes the need for a clear organizational structure of
the units and appropriate participation of governmental bodies and
others to ensure appropriate implementation of activities. The focal
units could provide feedback on implementation status of the conver
tion and could link up into regional networks to pool information activ
ities. The report notes the amount and type of assistance required fo
such units would be dependent on what is already in place, and that
unit would exist as long as there is work to do.

REGULATORY CONTROLS: On Wednesday, 27 January, the
Implementation Group considered the development, implementatior
and enforcement of regulatory controls. Several countries, including
NIGER, COLOMBIA and CHINA, noted that regulatory controls
often exist but are notimplemented or enforced. INDIA noted that lac
of will, relevant information and manpower undermine implementa-
tion. CHINA emphasized the need for means to exercise controls an
noted cases where PCBs are unknowingly imported as components
products. NIGER noted that some countries have regulations that m:
need to be amended for the convention and that other countries will
need to enact legislation. VENEZUELA called for capacity building
for enforcement control systems and networks. TANZANIA noted the
need to address certain unregulated chemicals, and the CZECH
REPUBLIC pointed out the problem of smuggling and illegal use. Th
NETHERLANDS said feasibility of enforcing regulations should be
considered when legislating. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL
noted that a complete ban on production and use would enable mos
effective enforcement. COLOMBIA underscored the impossibility of
prohibiting some substances without safe alternatives and said tech-
nical assistance must meet economic and geographic demands.
BENIN noted ignorance of policy makers and illegal entry of POPs a
problems, and called for financial assistance.

The final report identifies the need to differentiate between coun-
tries that may need assistance to create a regulatory framework for
POPs from scratch, and those that already have laws in place to reg
late specific POPs. It also emphasizes: the importance of access to

« conducting inventories would be an essential step in implementivigble, safe and economic alternatives to POPs; the need for technic

an international instrument on POPs;

« technical assistance would be needed for many developing
countries;

* inventories are an ongoing process;

capacity to regulate POPs; and the need to combat illegal trans-
boundary traffic. It suggests that countries with formulated POPs
legislation provide advice and sample legislation to serve as a mode

TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER: INDIA, supported by CHINA

« differences in conducting inventories for the three categories of and COLOMBIA, called for consideration of costs of technology

POPs may need to be explored;
« little information is available regarding POPs produced as
byproducts; and

transfer and alternatives. GREENPEACE INTERNATIONAL under-
scored finding alternatives and shared responsibility for this. The fin
report states that many delegates consider technology transfer to be

» more work needs to be done to gather information on industrial key element of a future convention, providing the means to phase ou

chemical POPs and POPs which move through illegal or unregif2OPs with safe, economic and environmentally friendly alternatives.
tered channels. notes support for innovative, new and situation-tailored approaches



Monday, 1 February 1999

Vol. 15 No. 18 Page 8

transfers. It was pointed out resources might be needed to cover poten-
tially higher costs of alternatives, or avenuesfound to access them.
Multilateral, bilateral and privatesector resourcescould beconsidered.

INFRASTRUCTURE ENHANCEMENT: On Wednesday, 27
January, del egates briefly discussed capacity building activitiesto
enhancelocal infrastructurefor aternative technologies, including
evaluation of existing infrastructure, devel opment of a guidance docu-
ment on enhancing infrastructure, and facilitation of meetings between
government officials, industry and local businessto enhanceinfra-
structure. ARGENTINA emphasized the need to make the use of alter-
native technologies feasible, with special attention to the development
of non-chemical aternatives. Thefinal report supportsactivitiesto
create the necessary infrastructure for use of aternativesto POPS,
including non-chemical alternatives, taking country specific consider-
ationsinto account.

OUTREACH PROGRAMM E: On devel opment of an outreach/
information dissemination programme, CANADA highlighted and
endorsed its own decentralized and participatory information dissemi-
nation system. EGY PT noted that devel oping countries should not
copy developed countries, but find solutions specific to their needs.
Thefinal report identifies outreach asvital to the success of capacity
building and notes that programmes must be devel oped within the
context of specific national, subregional and regional circumstances.

RISK ASSESSM ENT: On Tuesday, 26 January, the RUSSIAN
FEDERATION requested that risk assessment be added to the capacity
building areas under discussion. In discussions on Thursday, 28
January, KENYA said risk reduction should be apriority over risk
assessment whilethe viability of POPs alternativesis assessed. The
RUSSIAN FEDERATION called for standardization of activities such
asrisk assessment. VENEZUELA called for non-chemical aternatives
to POPsto avoid similar problemsin thefuture. PSR called for injury
assessmentsto help educate and rai se awareness. Thefinal report notes
that risk assessment must be apart of national plans.

SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC CONSIDERATIONS: On
Tuesday, IRAN called for adding the activity areaof social and
economic considerationsto the discussions. On Thursday, 28 January,
IRAN, supported by CHINA, VENEZUELA, EGY PT and others,
emphasi zed the need to examine the social, economic, and environ-
mental and human health impacts of POPs alternatives, prior to their
application. CANADA and | CELAND suggested that socioeconomic
considerations be included in national plans. INDIA said socioeco-
nomic aspects should be considered when determining whether to ban
asubstance. Thefinal report notesthat socioeconomic assessment

INF/5), a number of delegations said that it was too early to make an
accurate assessment of the extent of assistance and resources requ
since much work remained to assess actual needs. The EU, support
by AUSTRALIA, on behalf of JUSSCANZ, ICELAND, the US and
CANADA, stressed existing mechanisms and programmes. IRAN sa
the GEF lacks the financial resources needed for the convention due
heavy requests for its assistance and its narrow focus on contaminat
in international waters. INDIA presentads-77/CHINA position
paper emphasizingjter alia, that financial resources must be
provided through a new and additional financial mechanism to enabl
effective implementation. The final report stresses that: some delege
tions identified existing sources and mechanisms as insufficient; a
strong financial mechanism is of central importance; and the Montre:
Protocol provisions could serve as a model. It further notes that othe
delegations considered that existing sources of funding and financia
mechanisms could be used by prioritizing activities, reassigning fund
looking at new approaches and seeking ways to avoid duplication. T
Group also requested the Secretariat to compile, as appropriate, the
following information for its next meeting:

» asummary of possible models for developing national inventories

on POPs;

* existing national inventories on POPs;

» asummary of existing national legislation on POPs;

* the scope, content, and development process of national action

plans under the auspices of existing environmental conventions;

 written information from governments on their priorities

regarding technical assistance in the above areas; and

» assessment of the feasibility of establishing a clearinghouse
mechanism, such as that under the Global Programme of Action
for the Prevention of Land-based Sources of Marine Pollution,
tailoring such information to POPs tasks and also incorporating

IFCS work on distribution of information on chemical safety.

On Thursday, 26 January, ARGENTINA, on behalf of the Latin
American and Caribbean Group (GRULAC), introduced a synthesis
activities that cited the formulation of national plans as a first priority.
It suggested that plans be based on: a national diagnosis of priorities
for capacity building in the legal, administrative, technical and technc
logical spheres; and elaboration of national inventories. She explaine
that the text provided a flexible framework accommodating the need
of all countries. AUSTRALIA asked for clarification as to where the
GRULAC text would be used. INDIA said the implications of the
GRULAC statement were not clear and requested to suspend action
the text until it was examined.

should be a part of the preparation of a country’s national implementaOn Friday, 27 January, delegates briefly considered a draft report

tion plan but, that as a crosscutting issue, it also needs to be consi

@ ibg Group’s proceedings (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/IAG/WP.1). Minor

under technology transfer activities and the enhancement of local @mendments were made to more accurately reflect the generality an

infrastructure.
ASSOCIATED COSTS: On Thursday, 26 January, delegates

addressed potential costs of technical assistdNDaA stressed that
availability, not source of funds, is important, supported adopting t
Montreal Protocol provision, and proposed funding be organized
through the Secretariat. The final report highlights statements that

substance of the week’s discussions prior to adopting the report.

CLOSING PLENARY
In Plenary on Friday afternoon, 29 January, GERMANY, on behal

R the EU, made a general statement and requested it be attached a:

nnex to the report of the meeting. The statement stressed: phasing
®0OPs production and use as the ultimate goal; export and import ¢

nature of a future convention and differing country needs and proby,ohipited POPs only for environmentally sound destruction: nationa

lems warrant a new and feasible approach to financial assistance.
Noted are cost saving ways of pooling resources such as informati

level implementation; best use of existing bilateral and multilateral
Qftangements; national efforts to raise awareness among policy and

sharing, centralized training of in-country trainers, and developing gecision makers: and the importance of information exchange and

common mass media campaigns using developing country infrastr.
ture and expertise. Also advocated is information-accessing throu

the clearinghouse mechanism of other conventions and bodies. On
traditionally cost-intensive assistance, costs could be reduced by ig]%
tifying, tasking and funding research and development facilities in
developing countries, with a view to sharing benefits, and by shar |

expensive destruction plants between countries.
SOURCESOF TECHNICAL AND FINANCIAL ASSIS

Ecess between governments and IGOs and NGOs. SWITZERLANI
sociated itself with this statement.

COTE D'IVOIRE, on behalf of the African Group, stressed the
’8d for: a multilateral financial mechanism; a compilation of POPs

. inventories; common, but differentiated responsibilities; provisions

r compensation; and research into local and indigenous knowledge
and non-chemical alternatives.

TANCE: Regarding existing or future sources of technical and finan-
cial assistance (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/INF/4 and UNEP/POPS/INC.2/



Earth NegotiationsBulletin
Vol.15No.18Page9d S Monday, 1 February 1999

UNEP Executive Director Dr. Klaus Topfer reiterated that the 12ate conference document. IRAN, supported by PAKISTAN, IRAN,
POPs listed for action in the mandate from the UNEP Governing the PHILIPPINES, EGYPT and CHINAaid the final report should
Council are truly the "dirty dozen" as they are toxic, persistent, travedflect the discussions, and that the statements should be annexed.
long distances and build up through the food chain. He said POPs mmestting adjourned briefly for legal consultation. Upon reconvening,
be stopped and a global solution must be reached by the year 200@Budeini noted that there was no provision to address the situation, ar
said these negotiations and UNEP's support for them reflect the shared that the reports would be attached since both he and Chair
commitment to environmentally sound management of chemicals Cardenas had agreed to annex the reports as requested during the
made in Chapter 19 of Agenda 21. He noted that the first contributioreeting. AUSTRALIA, the US, CANADA and ICELAND empha-
to the POPs Club helped to fund ongoing work. Topfer identified sized that the decision should not be viewed as a precedent. Buccini
UNEP Chemicals as the flagship of UNEP and thanked Chair Bucaiesponded that it would not be, and that future INC sessions could
and Jim Willis for their outstanding work. He emphasized that muclagree on other approaches. The G-77/CHINA position paper, an EU
can be learned from NGOs and from the Inuit people, in particular. paper on implementation matters, and statements by GRULAC and t
Taking advantage of Tépfer's presence, Buccini welcomed him intdAFRICAN GROUP were annexed to the report.
the POPs Club by presenting him with an honorary pin. Tépfer,in In closing remarks, GERMANY, on behalf of the EU, character-
return, donated a penny to the POPS Club for good luck. ized INC-2 as having cooperative spirit, and thanked Kenya, Chair

The Plenary then considered the report of the meeting (UNEP/ Buccini and the Secretariat for making INC-2 a success.
POPS/INC.2/L.1) that reflected Monday and Tuesday's Plenary  AUSTRALIA, on behalf of JUSSCANZ, indicated a profound sense
discussions. Buccini stressed that this is a consultation draft and s#idét much progress was made at INC-2 and, along with COTE
firmer positions are to be expected at INC-3. The US underlined th®'IVOIRE, on behalf of the African Group, BANGLADESH, on
need for science-based criteria in listing POPs candidates and, withehalf of G-77/CHINA, and the CZECH REPUBLIC, on behalf of
regard to exemptions, proposed a change in wording from “essenti@entral and Eastern Europe, offered thanks to Kenya, the Secretaria
equipment” to “products and articles in use.” CANADA noted that and the Bureau. IPEN also offered thanks and hoped for continued
discussion on the possible use of trade measures was premature. collaboration between all Parties to achieve a final goal. Chair Bucci
ICELAND proposed formal status for resolutions under the convennoted his appreciation for the positive way delegates worked and int
tion. In reaction to text reflecting support for the concept of differenticted at INC-2, and gaveled the meeting to a close at 8:00 pm.
ated responsibilities, the US proposed adding a sentence supporting
the concept of shared responsibility reflected in the PIC Convention as _
more appropriate. CHINA and IRAN asserted that this sentiment is not A BRIEF ANALYSISOF INC-2
widely shared. The US then modified the sentence to state that othersTAKING THE INC-1BALL AND RUNNING WITH IT: _
questioned the applicability of differentiated responsibility to this  Overall, many delegates characterized INC-2 as a success, setting
convention. The GAMBIA recalled that many countries had called félighwater mark” for negotiations. Given the early stages of the negc
non-chemical alternatives, and Chair Buccini amended the report tiation process, the success can perhaps be attributed to pre-existing
accordingly. global consensus on the hazards of POPs and the solid foundation fr

The Plenary then adopted the addendum to the final report of tHhich negotiations began. The Negotiation Group achieved "a very
meeting containing the report of the Negotiation Group (UNEP/POB4gcessful start.” Delegates completed preliminary discussions on
INC.2/L.1/Add.1). On prohibition and restriction, CANADA asked Measures to reduce or eliminate releases of POPs into the environ-
that the report indicate that some felt discussion on trade was prenfg€nt; identified by mangs the pivotal article of the future POPs
ture. On byproducts, CANADA asked that the report indicate that off?vention. Reflecting its importance to the convention, significant
country suggested reduction goals for byproducts. SWITZERLANME and energy was dedicated to "healthy discussions” on the issue
reiterated the strong support for a Secretariat paper on the relationshipshe general discussions held in the Implementation Group resulte
with other conventions to serve as a basis for discussions at INC-3in an initial consensus on possible capacity building activities .
IRAN added that some delegates expressed strong views that the requiring technical and financial assistance that will provide the basi:
development of national implementation plans should be consisterfer developing articles on these issues. Some delegates felt that the
with countries’ capacities and be subject to the availability of financgcussions skirted controversial matters and remained focused on t
and technical assistance. Chair Buccini proposed that this sentimerivbat” is to be done and not the “how.” However, others said progres
reflected in a separate paragraph. could be found in the prioritization of national plans and inventories t

Regarding adoption and amendment of conventions, ICELANDASSESS capacity building needs. Candid discussions on financial ass
added that it was also agreed to consider at a later stage the role of #§§-deémonstrated progress. Despite developed countries calling f
lutions within the convention, in particular the complex issue of ~ consideration of existing sources and developing countries calling fo
byproducts. To reflect its concerns, the WWF added reference to CRsiflitional resources, there appeared to be willingness to take a
and the serious health and environmental effects associated with it§\g&sured open-minded approach and consider all possibilities.

and its replacement by effective and viable alternatives. ICCA GOING PROFESSIONAL : There was general agreement among
requested a separate paragraph to reflect its views on the need to INC-2 delegates that the POPs negotiation process benefits from the
reduce and/or eliminate POPs. experiences acquired in previous negotiations of international enviro

Implementation Group Chair Cardenas introduced the Group’s Mental conventions. A case in point was the broad acceptance of the
report (UNEP/POPS/INC.2/L.1/Add.2) to the Plenary. Chair BuccirffXPanded outline of alegally binding instrument that provided the
noted the report was final and closed for comment except for a que2aSis for dlscuss!ons at INC-_2. Wlth a skeletal outline loosely based ¢
tion on whether to include a paragraph providing for annexing to thé!e PIC Convention and the inclusion of relevant elements of the
report statements by G-77/CHINA and the EU on sources of technfé@ntreal Protocol, the Convention on Biological Diversity, the Frame
and financial assistance or to exclude the paragraph on the basis tH@rk Convention on Climate Change and the Basel Convention, del
the statements were reflected in the report. Chair Buccini noted th&tat€s were clearly in an advantageous position from the start.
was precedent for annexing such statements in the PIC negotiations. With the PIC Convention tucked neatly under its belt, the Secre-
AUSTRALIA, on behalf of JUSSCANZNd supported by NORWAY, tariat had a basic framework from which to work in preparing the
NEW ZEALAND, CANADA and the US, said annexing under the €Xpanded outline of possible articles for inclusion in the convention.
current circumstances would be unproductive, pressure countries i INC settled comfortably into negotiations and was much further
making statements and lead to a statement war. She suggested a §é¢2g than it had been by the end of INC-2 of the PIC negotiation



Earth NegotiationsBulletin
Monday, 1 February1999 TS .. Val. 15 No. 18 Page 10

process. After initial hesitancy in attempting to dissect the Secretariat's THINGSTO LOOK FOR
proposed outline, by Wednesday the INC had taken over and appeared SECOND MEETING OF THE CRITERIA EXPERT

0 hfwe asense of ownership” over thedocmiment. o . GROUP: The Second Session of the Criteria Expert Group is sched-
Modeled after the Montreal Protocol” became a familiar refrain g to meet in June 1999 to continue its work on identifying criteria

ated responsibilities and the financial mechanism of the Montreal te |ocation and date are still to be determined. For more informatio
Protocol as role models to be emulated. However, others cautionegontact UNEP Chemicals (IRPTC), tel: +41 (22) 979-9111; fax: +41
against clamoring for a reproduction of the Protocol, noting that %2&) 797-3460; dogden@unep.ch; Internet: http:/irptc.unep.ch/pops
mirroring it could lead to repeating sub-optimal phase-out targets a PERSISTENT ORGANIC POL LUTANTSINC-3: The third
scaring off donor delegations. ] session of the Persistent Organic Pollutants (POPs) Intergovernmer

DODGING THE OBSTACLES: Throughout INC-2, requests forNegotiation Committee (INC-3) is tentatively scheduled for
clarification of commitments to guide financial and technical assis-gentember or October 1999 in Geneva. For more information, conta
tance were answered by calls for indication of available assistanceii® ep chemicals (IRPTC), tel: +41 (22) 979-9111; fax: +41 (2’2) 797
assess ability to commit. At INC-1, the establishment of the Imple- %460; dogden@unep.ch; Internet: http://irptc.unep,.ch/pops/.

p

mentation Group attempted to nip the classic chicken-versus-egg 3 NTERNATIONAL CONFERENCE ON L EAD POISONING

in the bud by separating considerations of the goal and the meansg }
O . X EVENTION AND TREATMENT: The World Bank, the George
achieving it. This separation, orchestrated at INC-1, may well prov ndation, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (US), a

be an astute and productive tactic in that it allows discrete and untrgiiy ;s Epa’are co-sponsoring this conference that will take place fro

meled consideration of interdependent issues and at the same time,_ ; : ; :
provides for forward looking consideration of how they will interloc% 10 February 1999, in Bangalore, India. The conference will provide
|

. o . g . orum for policymakers, scientists, health and environmental speci
The separation has allowed negotiations to continue in good faith u; L and regreseyntatives of I0s and NGOs to discuss the formulgtior(

the understanding that financial and technical needs will be met. : ; D .

However, while amicable, the initial discussions on financial as:s;is-?.nfai gﬁ;g}'ggg?gg Qc?tc'gr_]grl Igﬁ%gg'go%lglﬁéei;ﬁrr\}l'ﬁ]?s?rmg][%mnw_es

tance were characterized as somewhat superficial, indicating this i?é]H%ent and Forests and thegMinistry gf Health. the WHOyJohns

will be battled oqt atalater date. - Hopkins University (US), and the Friends of Lead-Free Children USA
INC-2 also witnessed the early struggle of reconciling global Fqr more information, contact: Jude Devdas, George Foundation,

consensus to take concerted action with the practical demands of Bangalore, tel: +91-80-5440164; fax: +91-80-5440210; or Ms. Tares

national implementation. The general discussions teased out the wari. tel: +91-80-2217384 fax: +91-80-2217481: Internet: http://
tensions that often exist between domestic self-interest, Sovereignm.worldbank.org/htmI/éxtdr/extme/p3011599.’htm.

rights and local implementation on the one hand and delivering on

agreed obligations reflecting the consensus of the international M AAI\\I?AI\'(ASE'I\AACEINII:'II'CTT\FSGr#Se[\tIﬁ; v\\//\nl()kalz};g:;?rgrg TGF-?QPI\S/Iarch 1999

community on the other. This reality played itself out in the negotia;  \ joinamin a city yet to be determined. For more information,

tions as some countries took a realist approach in refusing to bite Oﬁontact' David Ogden, UNEP Chemicalé (IRPTC), tel: +41 (22)’ 979-

more than they CO.U|d chew. . 9111; fax: +41 (22) 797-3460; dogden@unep.ch; Internet: http://
The relationship of the future POPs convention to other convenimic unep.ch/pops/

tions on chemicals has yet to be articulated, but there is strong supporj. . )

to address the issue at INC-3. Some delegates believe that instruwlgg@ 3&%3585&9%9'—';; l_rL%eF{?n% ?vmobg Egg‘ fgﬁ]e;i%ﬁzéolggg

are already in place for dealing with trade of potentially produced - :
POPs under the PIC and Basel Conventions and therefore there is gome_and will produce recommendations on procedures for the
paration and revision of guidelines and increased transparency a

;?iﬁsir?ri]téoirﬂ‘;ﬁlclzca;engfggrgsn.o?&eézr%rg:ree;{jhtagé?ﬁe?gcljns\/g?l%ﬁgthon scommendations for the revision of the International Code of
Y, p nduct on the Distribution and Use of Pesticides. For information

has fully developed its own objectives. Some warned that looking . tal- fay
; L : " = tontact: Gerold Wyrwal, FAO; tel: +39 (6) 5705 2753; fax: +39 (6)
the relationship with other conventions does not mean “convenien 05 6347; e-mail: Gerold.Wyrwal@fao.org.

trying to place the issue of trade under the auspices of the PIC and ) . .
Basel Conventions, as they may not adequately deal with the problem> X TH PICINC MEETING: The Sixth Session of the PIC INC

of POPs, and said failure to include strict trade measures in the coU&gting Will be held in Rome from 12-16 July 1999 at FAO Headqua

tion would defeat the purpose of a global convention on substancel€"™ t0 begin work during the interim period between signing the -
that travel long distances and from which "o one can hide." onvention and its entry into force. For more information contact:

: . . : UNEP Chemicals (IRPTC), tel: +41 (22) 979-9111; fax: +41 (22) 797
INCTEE PLAYOFFS: While the deadline of completing work by 3460; e-mail: jwillis@unep.ch; Internet: http://irptc.unep.ch/pic/. Or
-4 appears to be attainable, much remains to be accompllshedc act: FAO, tel: +39 (6) 5705 3441: fax: +39 (6) 5705 6347; e-mail

example, the real costs of implementing the convention have yet t . . .
assessed and a deal will have to be brokered so that developing C%@g/\{)aens?iﬂg;sgﬁ?grﬁergﬁtlrrr:temet' http://www.fao.org/ag/agp/

tries are ensured adequate finances and developed countries feel
can foot the bill. In addition, details on prohibitions, restrictions and MO/EMEP WORK SHOP ON MODELING OF ATMO-

; ; PHERIC TRANSPORT AND DEPOSI TION OF POPSAND
exemptions will have to be fleshed out. Sl R . .
Although INC-3 will certainly have its work cut out with respect tM ERCURY: This workshop will take place in November 1999 at the

; d " ; MO Headquarters in Geneva. For more information contact: Marin
measures, there is clear commitment to "attacking the beast head rygina, Meteorological Synthesizing Centre East, tel: +7 (95) 124

However, it is still too early to tell what the outcome will be since no St . 0.

real negotiations on placement of substances into the annexes too 758; fax: +7 (95) 310 7093; e-mail: msce@glasnet.ru.

place. The willingness of some to continue working on the annexes i THIRDMEETING OF_THE INTERNATIONAL FORUM |

Contact Group along with requests for very specific information frofdN CHEMICAL SAFETY: The Third Meeting of The International

the Secretariat for INC-3 illustrated a clear resolve to further the neiggtum on Chemical Safety is tentatively scheduled for September ol

tiating process. INC-3 will mark the official start of "real" negotiatio oCr:?aE)cEf['r éggguﬁcg ;velzll:?eetgg/lﬂATe?éiégz.rE%rerr??arlel;gIaLng%nhemica

o iy e T ooyl enge for INC-3 WilE foty,tel: +41 (22) 701-3650/4333; fax: +41 (22) 7914875, o-ma
ifcs@who.ch; Internet: http://www.who.int/ifcsh.



